Form No. 10-300 (Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

Dover

FOR NPS USE ONLY DATE ENTERED UIL 1 2 1978

	1103/11/11/11/011			10.4
SEE	INSTRUCTIONS IN HOW TYPE ALL ENTRIES	TO COMPLETE NATION, COMPLETE APPLICABL		S
NAME				
HISTORIC Si	te of the J. H. Wilke	rson & Son Brickwor	ks	
AND/OR COMMON				
LOCATION	J			
STREET & NUMBER	S 紀 Off -Road 409		NOT FOR PUBLICATION	
CITY, TOWN			CONGRESSIONAL DISTR	NCT
M	ilford	_ VICINITY OF		One
STATE	10063	CODE	COUNTY	CODE
CLASSIFIC	elaware 19963 CATION	10	Kent	001
CATEGORY	OWNERSHIP	STATUS	PRES	ENT USE
DISTRICT	PUBLIC	OCCUPIED	AGRICULTURE	MUSEUM
BUILDING(S)	X PRIVATE	X _UNOCCUPIED	COMMERCIAL	PARK
STRUCTURE	ВОТН	WORK IN PROGRESS	EDUCATIONAL	PRIVATE RESIDEN
X_site	PUBLIC ACQUISITION	ACCESSIBLE	ENTERTAINMENT	RELIGIOUS
OBJECT	IN PROCESS	YES: RESTRICTED	GOVERNMENT	SCIENTIFIC
	BEING CONSIDERED	YES: UNRESTRICTED	INDUSTRIAL	TRANSPORTATION
		XNO	MILITARY	X_other Abando Industri
OWNER O	F PROPERTY			
NAME	J. H. Wilkerson &	Son, Inc.		
STREET & NUMBER				
	P. O. Box 78			
CITY, TOWN	Milford	_ VICINITY OF	STATE De 1	aware 19963
LOCATION	OF LEGAL DESC	RIPTION		
COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS,	ETC. Kent County Cour	thouse		
STREET & NUMBER		<u></u>	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
·	The Green			
CITY, TOWN	Dorrow		STATE	10001
REPRESEN	NTATION IN EXIST	ING SURVEYS	Del	aware 19901
TITLE				
TITLE	Delaware Cultura	al Resource Survey,	K-360	
DATE	1975		STATE _COUNTY _LOCAL	
DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS	Div. of Historical &			
CITY, TOWN			STATE	
	Dover		Dela	ware 19901



CONDITION

CHECK ONE

CHECK ONE

__EXCELLENT

__FAIR

X__DETERIORATED

_UNEXPOSED

RUINS

__UNALTERED
X_ALTERED

X_ORIGINAL SITE

__MOVED DATE____

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The J. H. Wilkerson & Son Brickworks was located on the north side of the Mispillion River, just east of Milford. When the brick-making operation ceased, the site was abandoned undisturbed. Though the framing of the remaining buildings has deteriorated and the site is overgrown with weeds, the pattern of the brick-making process is still discernible in the layout of the extant machinery and structures.

Easy access to clay determined the sites of such small brickworks as Wilkerson & Son. The clay hole which fed this brickworks began at the Mispillion and fanned out to the southeast. The clay hole is now depleted and its site is now an open field which is not included within the area nominated.

The sheds, machinery, kiln, and other structures directly associated with the brickmaking process encompass an area of about 360' by 260'. Some of the structures which housed the machinery remain standing, others have deteriorated or collapsed. Still standing are the storage shed, the shed over the brick-making machine, and one of the drying sheds. These structures are framed of wood and have tin roofs. sections are enclosed by walls of tin or wood. A few windows are in evidence in these sections, particularly in the elevated section over the main shed. All of the machinery is in place, including the disintegrators, the pug mill, the brick-making machine, and The belts and cups which carried the clay through the operation the brick cutter. Nearby is the machine which lifted the clay out of the clay hole are also present. and into the trucks which carried it to the works. Around the site are other pieces of equipment used in the brick-making process. These include the drying pallets, the metal wagons which carried the bricks to the drying shed and then to the kiln, and the wooden wheelbarrow used to empty the kiln. The walls of the kiln remain standing, just as they would have been left after the fired bricks are removed.

The brick-making process that took place at this site was documented by the Historic American Engineering Record in 1975. Their report is attached to this nomination.

8. SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD	AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW			
PREHISTORIC	ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC	COMMUNITY PLANNING	LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE	RELIGION
1400-1499	X ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC	CONSERVATION	LAW	SCIENCE
_1500-1599	AGRICULTURE	ECONOMICS	LITERATURE	SCULPTURE
1600-1699	ARCHITECTURE	EDUCATION	MILITARY	SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
1700-1799	ART	ENGINEERING	MUSIC	THEATER
1800-1899	COMMERCE	EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT	PHILOSOPHY	TRANSPORTATION
X_1900-	COMMUNICATIONS	X.INDUSTRY	POLITICS/GOVERNMENT	X_OTHER (SPECIFY)
		INVENTION		Technology

SPECIFIC DATES 1912/1919

BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The brickmaking company of J. H. Wilkerson & Son ceased operation in 1957, the last of eleven similar small-scale brickworks in Delaware to close down. Though the various sheds which house the operations are deteriorating, the brickmaking equipment is essentially intact and in the same position as when the Wilkerson employees left work for the last time over two decades ago. The factory complex thus presents an unparalleled opportunity to examine a Delaware brickworks as it appeared when local brickworks characterized the industry.

Because of the great bulk and low value of both raw materials and finished product, brick manufacturers chose for factory locations sites close to both clay deposits and potential markets. Clay deposits are uncommon in Sussex County, and in 1919 Wilkerson and his son, C. Van Nuis, purchased the Milford Brick Company founded in 1912 and situated upon a prime source of clay adjacent to the Mispillion River. Wilkerson expanded the existing facilities and within a short time became a leading supplier of face and common bricks to a variety of customers within a forty-mile radius of Milford. The Milford Hospital on Clark Avenue is a notable example of the end use of Wilkersons' product.

Through the years there were relatively few modifications to the production methodology established by the company. It is true that steam power supplanted man and animal power and was, in turn, replaced by the gasoline engine in some phases of the process; however, basically, Wilkerson was not a technologically innovative firm and here the brickmaking process was little changed from that of the late nineteenth century.

The brickmaking season ran from April to October and the Wilkerson's average annual production came to approximately 1.25 million bricks of all grades. By the mid-1950's, the clay deposit was exhausted. Attempts to buy clay from other sources proved too costly and in 1957 the works closed. The company currently is a distributor for bricks made by other firms and for fuel oil.

9 MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY About 1-1/2 acres

A 118 4 6 4 119 0 4 3 0 7 6 5 0

10 GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

UTM REFERENCES

Historic American Engineering Record Inventory (DE-5)

C 1 18 4 6 4 0 16 10	4 ₁₃ 0 ₁ 7 6 ₁ 4 ₁ 0		4641100	4, 3 0, 7 7, 0,	ol
VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCR	PTION				
The nominated area forms 360' on its northern and Wilkerson Lane and the Reast of Wilkerson Lane a	d southern sides. Mispillion River.	It is loca The northe	ted between the rn corner is al	e foot of cout 200' sou	th-
LIST ALL STATES AND	COUNTIES FOR PROPER	TIES OVERLAPPI	NG STATE OR COUN	TY BOUNDARIES	
STATE	CODE	COUNTY		CODE	
STATE	CODE	COUNTY		CODE	
11 FORM PREPARED NAME/TITLE Joan M. Norton, Arc		ian; Dean E.		rian	
organization Div. of Historical	& Cultural Affair	Q	DATE	October 1977	
STREET & NUMBER	& Cultural Filture	5	TELEPH		
Hall of Records, P.	Box 1401			678-5314	
city or town Dover			STATE	Delaware 19	9901
12 STATE HISTORIC	DRESERVATIO	N OFFICE	D CEPTIFIC	ATION	
	JATED SIGNIFICANCE OF				
NATIONAL	STA	TE_X_	LOCAL		
As the designated State Historic Prince hereby nominate this property for criteria and procedures set forth by	inclusion in the National the National Park Service	Register and cert			
TITLE Director, Div. o	f Historical & Cu	ltural Affai	rs DATE	1 11/21/2	77
FOR NPS USE ONLY I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DIRECTOR OFFICE OF ARCHE ATTEST: KEEPER OF THE NATIONAL RE	OLE WIND HISTORIES	PESERVATION	AL REGISTER DATE LEEPER OF DATE	THE NATIONAL 7-6-78	28 REGISTER
					GPO 888-445

Blie 46,41,6,0 4,30,76,0,0

Form No. 10-300a (Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

FOR NPS USE ONLY		,	
RECEIVED NOV 29 19	77	N	
DATE ENTERED 111	1 2 19	78	

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

Site of the J.H. Wilkerson and Son Brickworks CONTINUATION SHEET

ITEM NUMBER 6

PAGE 1

Historic American Engineering Record Inventory (DE-5)

1974

Federal

Library of Congress Washington, D.C.